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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I have a

          3  statement to read and then we will commence this

          4  meeting.

          5                 Welcome to the Finance Committee

          6  hearing. This is the first part of the last leg of

          7  our budget adoption process, and this hearing will

          8  be recessed so that members may be brought back

          9  quickly when we are ready to adopt.

         10                 However, we do have a number of

         11  important items to deal with first. We have before

         12  us today proposed Intro. Number 861-A, which would

         13  extend the period during which commercial buildings

         14  that are under construction and unoccupied would be

         15  exempt from assessment for property tax purposes by

         16  an additional two years.

         17                 We had a full hearing on this

         18  proposal in April, and the only change we have made

         19  is to move the construction commencement date back

         20  one year so that more buildings not yet completed

         21  will benefit from the amendments.

         22                 We also are considering Intro. 928-A,

         23  which are amendments to the tax lien sales law and

         24  an amendment concerning rent stabilization fees,

         25  which are lienable charges.
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          2                 We held a hearing in October of last

          3  year at which this Committee and the Housing and

          4  Buildings Committee heard extensive testimony on all

          5  of the proposals in this legislation dealing with

          6  changes to the tax lien sales program.

          7                 Based on that extensive testimony, we

          8  were able to work with the Administration and put

          9  together a much more tailored proposal.

         10                 This bill makes changes which would

         11  allow tax liens on commercial properties to be sold

         12  that do not include a real property tax component.

         13  It's on commercial properties only.

         14                 It closes loopholes to prevent owners

         15  from avoiding the sale of tax liens relating to

         16  their property by just paying the main component of

         17  the liens, such as the real estate tax portion,

         18  while leaving other charges unpaid but leaving the

         19  rules with regard to class I and class I co-op

         20  condos as they currently exist.

         21                 It also would protect apartment

         22  building owners from liens arising from unpaid rent

         23  stabilization fees, if they bought the building in

         24  good faith before the unpaid charges had been made

         25  into a lien, and it would give owners a chance to
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          2  pay past due rent stabilization fees without

          3  interest.

          4                 Finally, it extends the tax lien sale

          5  program for two years so the new Council can

          6  continue to monitor it.

          7                 Importantly, changes to the

          8  definition of distressed properties which would have

          9  allowed tax liens on certain residential dwellings

         10  to be sold in future tax lien sales have been

         11  eliminated from the legislation because they were

         12  controversial and it was difficult to come up with

         13  changes that we knew would not encourage abandonment

         14  of buildings.

         15                 We will also take up the four Banking

         16  Commission resolutions which we adopt each year

         17  which set late payment interest rates and real

         18  estate taxes and other charges and the discount rate

         19  for early tax payment.

         20                 Finally, we have Land Use items, most

         21  of which are part of one item containing a large

         22  number of tax breaks for properties going through

         23  third-party transfers.

         24                 Having said that, I want to welcome

         25  everybody here. Commissioners, first of all, welcome

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  to both of you. It's always a delight seeing you.

          3                 And Commissioner Eristoff, would you

          4  identify yourself and the Deputy Commissioner, and

          5  then tell us on what item you are testifying.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you.

          7  Good morning. I am Andrew S. Eristoff, Commissioner

          8  of the Department of Finance. I'm joined by Peter

          9  Lempin, who is Deputy Commissioner for Taxpayer

         10  Assistance, Planning and Payment Operations.

         11                 Mr. Chairman, with your permission I

         12  will address the bill dealing with the rent

         13  stabilization fees and the sale of tax liens, and

         14  then after I depart, Deputy Commissioner for

         15  Property Glenn Borin, will address the progress

         16  assessment bill, but we'll be happy, of course, to

         17  answer your questions, before --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Please proceed.

         21                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Good morning,

         22  and thank you for the opportunity to address this

         23  Committee on legislation that will amend the City's

         24  Administrative Code in relation to annual rent

         25  stabilization fees and the sale of tax liens.
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          2                 Let me first discussion the

          3  provisions relating to the annual rent stabilization

          4  fees.

          5                 As you know, the City pays the State

          6  Department of Housing and Community Renewal for its

          7  costs in administering the New York City Rent

          8  Stabilization Program under the Emergency Tenant

          9  Protection Act of 1974.

         10                 In turn, the City recoups a small

         11  portion of the cost through the imposition of an

         12  annual fee of $10 per unit on owners of rent

         13  stabilized housing units.

         14                 After due notice, fees that go unpaid

         15  by owners are subject to interest charges and become

         16  liens against the owners real property.

         17                 Section 6 of the bill before you

         18  would clarify the language of the Administrative

         19  Code concerning the enforcement of rent

         20  stabilization fee liens.

         21                 The proposed amendments would provide

         22  the City which short term administrative flexibility

         23  to work cooperatively with the owners of rent

         24  stabilized buildings to determine and collect any

         25  annual fees that may have bone unpaid from 1984
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          2  through 1998.

          3                 Due to concerns expressed by industry

          4  associations and numerous individual rent stabilized

          5  department owners, the bill would provide effective

          6  property owners with the opportunity to pay the fees

          7  without interest, if such fees are paid within 90

          8  days of a written notice demanding payment.

          9                 In addition, the bill further

         10  provides that where the Commissioner of Finance,

         11  that's me, determines that an owner has timely paid

         12  the annual fee for each year from 1993 to 1998, the

         13  annual fee for each year prior to 1993 shall be

         14  deemed paid.

         15                 This provision is necessary because

         16  property owners who have a timely payment history

         17  for fees attributable to the '93-'98 period, but are

         18  not required by law to keep the payment records for

         19  years prior to 1993 that would be necessary to

         20  clarify a payment discrepancy with the City's

         21  records for any such years are more likely than not

         22  to have paid their annual fee for the years prior to

         23  1993.

         24                 Let me turn now to provisions

         25  relating to the sale of tax liens. Since the
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          2  enactment of Local Law 26 of 1996, which authorized

          3  the Commissioner of Finance to sell tax liens,

          4  Finance has conducted six such sales of tax liens

          5  through securitization. The program has been

          6  extremely successful, raising more than 1.1 billion

          7  in delinquent taxes and charges and resulting in a

          8  39 percent reduction in the City's real property tax

          9  delinquency rate, from 4.87 percent in 1995, to 2.96

         10  percent in 2000.

         11                 Under current law, the City may not

         12  sell a lien on any class of property, including

         13  water or sewer lien, unless it contains a real

         14  estate tax component and has been delinquent for the

         15  requisite period of time, depending upon the class

         16  of property.

         17                 The requirement of a real estate tax

         18  component has evolved into something of a loophole

         19  under which owners with both real estate tax and

         20  water and sewer charges outstanding will satisfy the

         21  tax charges to escape a lien sale while continuing

         22  to ignore the water and sewer charges.

         23                 In fact, an analysis conducted by

         24  LaPerc found that approximately 11 million in water

         25  and sewer liens that were both validated by DEP and
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          2  included a real property tax component at the time

          3  the notice for sale was first published were not

          4  sold in 1999, because their real property tax

          5  component had been satisfied prior to the sale date.

          6                 To enhance the effectiveness of the

          7  tax lien enforcement program, the proposed

          8  amendments closed the loophole cited above.

          9                 Section 1 of this bill would provide

         10  that any class 2, 3 or 4 property, except for

         11  residential condominiums and cooperatives, with a

         12  lien that remains unpaid after the date of the first

         13  publication of the notice for sale may be sold, so

         14  long as the lien was delinquent for the requisite

         15  period of time, whether or not there is a real

         16  estate tax component on the date of the first

         17  publication of the notice for sale.

         18                 Section 2 of the bill would impose

         19  the same process for the sale of a subsequent tax

         20  lien as provided for in Section 1 of the bill.

         21                 Finally, the amendments, as you said,

         22  would extend the successful tax lien sale program.

         23                 Currently we have authority to sell

         24  the tax lien through and including October 31, 2001,

         25  Section 3 of the bill would allow the Commissioner
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          2  of Finance to sell a tax lien through and including

          3  October 31, 2003.

          4                 For all of these reasons, we strongly

          5  recommend that the Committee on Finance and the

          6  Council at large approve this bill.

          7                 Thank you. And I would be very

          8  pleased to answer questions.

          9                 Before I finish, Mr. Chairman, I

         10  neglected to say a word of thanks. It's my

         11  understanding this bill reflects a lot of dialogue

         12  and discussion under your leadership with the staff

         13  of the Finance Committee and OMB and Finance, and a

         14  lot of work went into this and we really appreciate

         15  the cooperation and hard work that went into it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Commissioner,

         17  you're very kind. You should also commend your

         18  staff, who worked very, very hard on the issue also.

         19                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         21                 I understand now you're prepared to

         22  address concerns raised by the hospitals who are

         23  worried about being included in a lien sale for

         24  unpaid water charges, and that we have an agreement

         25  that you will reach out to the non-profit hospitals
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          2  and nursing homes, and if they make reasonable

          3  efforts to pay, they will not be included in the

          4  lien sale.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: First we'll go

          7  into that in detail, and then if that is an accurate

          8  reflection, could we have an exchange of letters on

          9  that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes. We will

         11  be doing an exchange of letters on that.

         12                 I will ask Deputy Commissioner Lempin

         13  to speak of the details of it.

         14                 My understanding, Mr. Chairman, that

         15  our intention is that DEP, which oversees water and

         16  sewer charges necessarily would be the lead agency

         17  in working with hospitals and nursing homes to try

         18  to address their concerns, their issues, if they

         19  have delinquencies, and we will specify in an

         20  exchange of letters with you, as Chairman of the

         21  Council Finance Committee, what exactly the

         22  procedure will be, and obviously there is no

         23  intention on our part or yours to impose unfairly on

         24  that community. We realize they deliver essential

         25  services for the citizens of New York.
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          2                 Deputy Commissioner.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Commissioner

          4  Lempin, good morning.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: Good

          6  morning, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 We will convene a group immediately

          8  to work with the Department of Environmental

          9  Protection to validate the data to work with the

         10  Greater New York Hospital Association, and to begin

         11  to get the parties to the table so that we can reach

         12  mutual resolution.

         13                 The next sale would not commence

         14  until March of 2002, so we have several months

         15  before us that we can get this matter resolved.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are we correct in

         17  assuming that you will attempt to put into place the

         18  process by which the hospitals, the nursing homes

         19  can come in and reasonable effort or reasonable

         20  arrangement will be made in order to cause payment

         21  to be done, and thereby avoiding inclusion in the

         22  lien sale?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: Yes. I don't

         24  mean to step on Commissioner Lempin's words, but

         25  it's my understanding that DEP in fact has
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          2  considerable statutory flexibility in administering

          3  their fees and charges. And, so, obviously, we need

          4  to work with them, and I'm sure that they will be

          5  more than willing to work with the hospitals and the

          6  nursing homes on that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: We will

          9  take the lead in the effort, though, to ensure that

         10  we have the right principals participating in the

         11  effort, that we have the right data and that the

         12  data has been dated and we are working with the most

         13  current information, and I'll take the personal lead

         14  on it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         16  much, Commissioner.

         17                 Mr. Michels, you have a question?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, I have a

         19  couple of questions.

         20                 Good morning. Number one, how are

         21  you, gentlemen?

         22                 What is the reason that we are

         23  allowing people who have not paid their rent

         24  stabilization be from 1984 to 1998, to repay it and

         25  at this particular time without interest or without
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          2  any of those charges?

          3                 I read through your statement and

          4  it's not very clear why.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Okay.

          6                 Well, as you may recall, in earlier

          7  this year, the Department of Finance billed for

          8  delinquent fees, and the number of concerns were

          9  raised not only by the industry associations and

         10  individual property owners, but also by the Speaker

         11  of the Council, and at that time we engaged the

         12  Council and OMB in a discussion over what was the

         13  best way to resolve these concerns in a way that

         14  would be fair to all parties.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What were the

         16  concerns?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: The concern

         18  was, in some cases landlords did not have records

         19  going back that far, they felt they had met their

         20  obligations, but could not prove it because they

         21  hadn't retained records longer than seven years ago.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But your

         23  records indicate they hadn't paid it.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Our records

         25  indicated they had not paid, right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, it's easy

          3  to say, well, look, you know, I paid it, but I can't

          4  tell you how, I don't have any records. I'm trying

          5  to understand.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, it was,

          7  I gather, an issue for the industry because they

          8  felt that it was unreasonable to require that they

          9  come forward and try to prove something that was so

         10  old.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, what if

         12  they didn't say, look, I have no records to prove I

         13  paid my real estate taxes, but I paid it, and say I

         14  paid my real estate taxes, you're not going to let

         15  them get away with that, so why should it have to do

         16  with rent -- why should we let them get away with

         17  rent stabilization fees?

         18                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: See, as you

         19  know, this was not, discharge was not lienable until

         20  1997. A State amendment made it lienable.

         21                 Prior to that, the Division of

         22  Housing and Community Renewal at the State level had

         23  enforcement responsibility for the rent

         24  stabilization fees.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There was
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          2  other enforcement. If you went into Housing and

          3  Landlord and Tenant Court to go and get a tenant,

          4  you weren't paying your fee, and you couldn't prove

          5  you paid your fee, that was a defense superseding.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes, but it

          7  was not well enforced to say the least, and the data

          8  from the DHCR that we rely on in putting together

          9  our bills, has a checkered history, to say the

         10  least.

         11                 So, we felt that in light of the

         12  concerns expressed by the Council Speaker, as well

         13  as the industry, and individual landlords, that it

         14  made sense to revisit this issue and do it in the

         15  way that was described, which is --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: To give

         17  everybody who didn't pay their fees, they should

         18  have some color of why they didn't pay their fee or

         19  something, because it was a fee everybody was

         20  paying. Why should they get away with not having to

         21  pay, or give them a chance to repay the fee, at

         22  least they should be paying interest costs.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Again, this

         24  represents a compromise, Council Member.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Compromise?
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          2  People who were disobeying the law get away for a

          3  long period of time, '84 to '98, that's a long --

          4  how much money does this constitute? Do we know how

          5  much money we're talking about?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, the

          7  total amount that we billed originally, the total

          8  amount that we had billed was 25 million in

          9  principal and interest, 15 million for fiscal '01

         10  and 10 million for fiscal '02.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So we're

         12  talking about $25 million we are going to forgive?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: No, no, no.

         14  Because now we're not waiving the principal.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You're not

         16  waiving the principal.

         17                 So, how much is the principal? The

         18  principal is how much?

         19                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: About 5

         20  million.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So $20

         22  million of interest charges you're waiving? And what

         23  percent of the interest?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, only if

         25  they pay within the next 90 days.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So why don't

          3  you just reduce the interest charge, rather than

          4  forgive it completely? It will cost you more money

          5  to collect this stuff than the interest charges.

          6                 Mr. Chairman, are you listening to

          7  this? I'm sure you are. About the fact that we're

          8  going to be losing $20 million in interest by

          9  allowing them to forgive those people who pay their

         10  rent stabilization charges from 84 to 98, 14 years

         11  they didn't pay it, and now they're allowing them to

         12  pay it without having to pay interest charges and

         13  that will amount to a $20 million loss to the City.

         14                 At the time we're doing budget and

         15  we've got items that are so important for the

         16  budget, to lose $20 million is rather a large

         17  amount.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, the

         19  Commissioner seems to be anxious to intercede.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Again, Council

         21  member --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm sure they

         23  wouldn't waive that if I didn't pay my income taxes

         24  on time.

         25                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: As I said
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          2  previously, we have always been concerned along with

          3  the industry and Council leadership as to the

          4  integrity of the data that we have received from

          5  DHCR. That's number one, and that's problematic.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm worried

          7  about a lot more other things than with DHCR.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Okay.

          9                 In addition, because of the nature of

         10  enforcement prior to Finance taking over enforcement

         11  from DHCR, i.e. through the legislation that made it

         12  lienable. Finance's own efforts were inconsistent.

         13  We had never sent a consolidated bill. We sent

         14  annual bills, or bills in relation to annual

         15  charges, sometimes years late because we didn't get

         16  the data from DHCR, and, so, a reasonable person, at

         17  least I'm making their argument --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You're making

         19  the best case.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I'm making the

         21  best case for their point of view, because I did in

         22  fact fill on the basis that you would argue for. But

         23  here I am again.

         24                 A reasonable person would say, you

         25  know, is it entirely fair to bill me for all these
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          2  charges going back over a decade when you've only

          3  billed me incrementally for each year along the way

          4  and you've never given me a consolidated bill

          5  listing the delinquencies.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Only if they

          7  didn't know they had to pay it, and these are people

          8  who most likely were members of the rent

          9  stabilization association and they knew that they

         10  had to be paying these bills.

         11                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I believe so.

         12                 And I would say, what, over 90

         13  percent have been paying all along without any

         14  issue.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So why are we

         16  helping --

         17                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: You know,

         18  what's interesting, the other thing in defense of

         19  this perspective, and I'm not saying it's my

         20  personal opinion, Council Member --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right. We

         22  understand that.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We did an

         24  analysis of sort of the charges of debt, and it

         25  turned out that delinquents from one year long ago
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          2  didn't necessarily turn up as multiple delinquents.

          3  There was, in many cases somebody was paying without

          4  any trouble for a number of years, then missed one

          5  year and commenced paying again. So, we didn't have,

          6  obviously there was a core, but we didn't have

          7  widespread phenomenon in which somebody just ignored

          8  their obligation for year after year after year.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, you're

         10  saying this is a 90-day window?

         11                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: A 90-day

         12  window.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now after

         14  this 90 days, are you going to vigorously go after

         15  this money plus the interest charges?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: You can count

         17  on it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you.

         19                 I have a new question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You have another

         21  question?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels is

         24  chuck full of questions today.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Under the new

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  provision, allowing us to sell tax liens for Class 4

          3  properties that don't have to pay property taxes but

          4  do owe water, sewer charges and other type of

          5  charges, what type of non-profit properties would be

          6  subject to this tax lien sale?

          7                 In other words, non-for-profits don't

          8  have to pay real estate taxes, they have to pay

          9  water and sewer charges, are there synagogues and

         10  churches going to be involved, hospitals or anybody

         11  exempt from this? And what can happen if they don't

         12  pay the arrears and put the trust on a timely basis.

         13                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Number one,

         14  they are obligated to pay water and sewer charges.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Absolutely.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: And we all

         17  agree on that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And I agree

         19  it closes the loophole, too, I think we shouldn't

         20  have to include real estate taxes along with it in

         21  order to be able to close that loophole.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: My immediate

         23  response is to say, Council Member, that we would

         24  probably use the same strategy that is ascribed in

         25  relation to hospitals and nursing homes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm talking

          3  not-for-profits.

          4                 Profits, do what you want with them.

          5  But for not-for-profits, and who many times we

          6  subsidize, we have to give them money in one hand

          7  and in the other hand take money away from them.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: As a practical

          9  matter, and I'm probably overstepping my bounds

         10  here, it's hard to envision the Department selling a

         11  lien on, you know, in the context of a non-profit --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can I ask

         13  you, even though it's in here, I ask you to please

         14  consider a revised legislation or a legislation to

         15  supplement this, giving some thought to

         16  not-for-profit hospitals, and synagogues and

         17  churches?

         18                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes. I mean --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The answer is

         20  yes, you will consider it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We have a

         22  whole year before this will become an issue of a

         23  immediacy and --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But you and I

         25  only have six months.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, we

          3  know that about you, but we really don't know that

          4  about Mr. Eristoff.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Or about you,

          6  sir.

          7                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I'm looking

          8  forward to being First Deputy Comptroller.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Eristoff, I

         10  would certainly give you good training.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you.

         12                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you,

         13  Council Member.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Stanley, are you

         15  now at peace?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. How do

         17  you spell peace?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         19  other questions?

         20                 Commissioner, thank you so much for

         21  your time.

         22                 Peter, are you staying?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEMPIN: I'm going

         24  to stay in the back. In the back, if you need me.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.
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          2                 Who is next?

          3                 Commissioner. Good morning,

          4  Commissioner Borin. How are you?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Fine.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You might as well

          8  proceed.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 Good morning. I'm Glenn Borin, Deputy

         12  Commissioner of Finance. Chairman Berman and Members

         13  of the City Council Finance Committee, thank you for

         14  this opportunity to address this Committee on

         15  legislation that will aid the City's efforts to

         16  retain and increase jobs in the knowledge-based

         17  businesses that are the core of the City's economy.

         18                 My testimony today follows up on the

         19  testimony that Commissioner Andrew Eristoff

         20  presented to this Committee on April 2nd.

         21                 I will, therefore, with your

         22  permission, summarize the written testimony that we

         23  have provided to your committee, and then answer any

         24  questions that the members of the Council may have.

         25                 Council Intro. No. 861-A is a
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          2  proposed local law to amend the Administrative Code

          3  of the City of New York in relation to the

          4  assessment of commercial buildings.

          5                 Specifically it amends the existing

          6  one-year progress assessment provisions of the

          7  Administrative Code by allowing up to three years

          8  for progress assessment status for commercial

          9  buildings.

         10                 Currently, under Administrative Code

         11  Section 11-209, any building whose construction is

         12  commenced after the fifth day of January, which is

         13  the taxable status date, and that is not ready for

         14  occupancy by the fifth day of January of the

         15  following year, is not assessed for the purpose of

         16  real property taxation, unless the building is ready

         17  for occupancy or part of it is occupied before the

         18  15th of April.

         19                 Under court decisions the

         20  commencement of construction for this purpose is

         21  defined as the introduction to the soil of foreign

         22  material, which is incorporated into the completed

         23  new building. Thus, construction does not include

         24  demolition or excavation work, but is deemed

         25  commenced when work on the foundation begins.
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          2                 The progress assessment provisions

          3  apply only to new buildings. They do not apply to

          4  renovations, conversions or expansions of existing

          5  buildings.

          6                 Only the value of the improvements is

          7  omitted from the assessment roll; the value of the

          8  land continues to be subject to assessment.

          9                 The bill amends Section 11-209,

         10  extending the progress has been status for

         11  commercial buildings only for up to three years,

         12  depending upon the date of occupancy or readiness

         13  for occupancy.

         14                 If the building is completed after

         15  one year, it will get the same treatment as under

         16  current law and only the land will be taxed for that

         17  year.

         18                 If it requires two or three years to

         19  build, the bill would extend the progress assessment

         20  status accordingly. If it takes more than three

         21  years to complete, the improvements will be subject

         22  to full taxation to the extent of its value in the

         23  incomplete state.

         24                 For the purposes of this bill, a

         25  commercial building is a building that is intended
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          2  to be used and upon completion is used exclusively

          3  for buying, selling, or otherwise providing goods

          4  and services or for other lawful business,

          5  commercial or manufacturing activities excluding

          6  hotel services.

          7                 A commercial building for the purpose

          8  of this law may contain a residential component

          9  other than a hotel. If that portion is either

         10  partially exempt under Section 421-A or is fully

         11  exempt.

         12                 New buildings other than those

         13  defined as commercial buildings will continue to

         14  receive the benefit of the one-year progress

         15  assessment that has been in the law since 1913.

         16                 The bill will not remove any existing

         17  property from the tax roll, but merely delay the

         18  addition of value generated by construction

         19  activity.

         20                 The bill's moderation of the impact

         21  of tax on new construction is expected to encourage

         22  construction and, therefore, eventually increase the

         23  total size of the tax base.

         24                 The one reason that the deferred

         25  revenue is relatively modest is that the progress
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          2  assessment benefit generally does not increase the

          3  total tax benefits for properties that are eligible

          4  for construction incentives, such as those granted

          5  under the industrial and commercial incentive

          6  program.

          7                 The current one-year progress

          8  assessment provision were enacted in 1913 in

          9  recognition of the fact that while a new building

         10  may eventually have an income generating capacity

         11  that justifies its cost to construction, this

         12  potential is unrealized while the building remains

         13  incomplete and unoccupied.

         14                 At that time large scale construction

         15  was a new phenomena, and buildings requiring more

         16  than one year to build were rare.

         17                 Today it is not unusual for the

         18  construction of a large commercial office building

         19  to require up to three years.

         20                 Consequently the proposed local law

         21  recognizes the greater complexity of such modern

         22  commercial construction, and the need for a longer

         23  progress assessment period.

         24                 Although many types of new buildings

         25  enjoy a full exemption of the improvement value
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          2  during their construction, major office buildings

          3  are often not qualified to receive exemption

          4  benefits.

          5                 The cost of construction for such

          6  projects includes real estate taxes that are paid

          7  during a period of up to three years when the

          8  building generates no income.

          9                 Despite record rent levels, the

         10  overall high cost of new construction has

         11  discouraged the addition of new Class A space to the

         12  City's inventory. This has placed the City at a

         13  competitive disadvantage in its efforts to retain

         14  major employers who require large blocks of modern

         15  space.

         16                 The modified progress assessment

         17  provisions will contribute to the City's efforts to

         18  bring construction costs in line with those in

         19  competing parts of the Metropolitan region and other

         20  major cities.

         21                 For all of these reasons, Finance

         22  Commissioner Eristoff strongly recommends that the

         23  Committee and the Council at large approve this

         24  bill.

         25                 I would be pleased to answer any of
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          2  your questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          4  questions?

          5                 Commissioner, you bowled us over with

          6  your eloquence and apparently you've neutered all

          7  types of dramatic opposition.  Thank you very much.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Thank you,

          9  Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, we have the

         11  Land Use items. Whose going to testify?

         12                 All right, we will do the banking

         13  resolution first; whose going to testify?

         14                 Nadine and Chip? Or Jim and Nadine.

         15                 MS. FELTON: Yes, I'm Nadine Felton,

         16  Finance Division.

         17                 MR. CARAS: And Jim Caras, Legal

         18  Division.

         19                 MS. FELTON: There are four

         20  resolutions that we do. We do them each year at this

         21  time and they're fairly standard ones. They are the

         22  Banking Commission resolutions that set the interest

         23  rates that we can charge for delinquent payment of

         24  real estate, and taxes and water and sewer fees, and

         25  also set a discount rate for the prepayment of
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          2  property taxes.

          3                 The first resolution, number 1917,

          4  sets the discount rate for prepayment of taxes,

          5  which is two percent, and that's been pretty much

          6  what it's been for several years. And this is

          7  prepayment of real estate taxes.

          8                 For the people who pay quarterly they

          9  get this discount if they prepay the second, third

         10  and fourth quarter and for people who pay on a

         11  half-year basis, properties that pay on a half-year

         12  basis for the second half of the year.

         13                 The next resolution, which is

         14  resolution 1916-A, sets the interest that can be

         15  charged on vacant land, I'm sorry, this is the one

         16  that's on land that's not vacant, vacant on real

         17  land. And there are two categories of interest

         18  basically, one is for properties where the annual

         19  tax bill, property tax bill is more than -- not more

         20  than 2,750, the interest rate is 18 percent, and

         21  where the bill is less than that, the interest rate

         22  is nine percent.

         23                 MR. CARAS: Actually a correction on

         24  that, this is where the real estate taxes for the

         25  land, for the parcel, is not more than $2,750, and
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          2  the real property taxes are held in escrow and paid

          3  by mortgage escrow agent and nine percent in all

          4  other cases.

          5                 The next one is for non-payment of

          6  water rents and sewer rents, and it sets the

          7  interest rate at 18 percent where the real estate

          8  taxes is more than $2,750, or where the real estate

          9  taxes on the property are held in escrow and paid to

         10  the Commissioner of Finance by an escrow agent and

         11  on all other parcels and vacant, all other parcels,

         12  nine percent. Vacant and unimproved land is also the

         13  18 percent rate. And these 18 percent rates have

         14  been for the last many, many years, the rates have

         15  been at 18 percent, and those were the rates

         16  recommended to us by the Banking Commission.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         18  others?

         19                 MR. CARAS: One other one.

         20                 MS. FELTON: One other one.

         21                 MR. CARAS: Resolution 1919-A would

         22  establish an 18 percent rate where the annual tax on

         23  the property is more than $2,750, or where

         24  irrespective of the annual tax the parcel is vacant

         25  or unimproved land and it would also set that same
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          2  18 percent rate for work charges where work was

          3  performed by the Board of Health or the Department

          4  of Health and the amounts haven't been paid.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          6  questions?

          7                 Thank you very much, both of you.

          8                 Okay, let's do the Land Use items.

          9                 Where was he? He was just here.

         10                 Someone from Finance Division, are

         11  you going to do the Land Use?

         12                 Hi. Identify yourself, please.

         13                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Hi. I'm David

         14  Pchefsky, from City Council Finance Division.

         15                 If you will please refer to page two

         16  of the document, a memo from myself to Chairman

         17  Berman, it should be --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Just a second,

         19  David.

         20                 Go ahead, David.

         21                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Yes, okay.

         22                 You will see that there are seven

         23  items, Land Use items, up for consideration or

         24  exemption, parcel exemption property taxes. The

         25  first of these being Land Use 974. It's a StoreWorks
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          2  Program in Council Member Robinson's district. It's

          3  four buildings, 12 units, four commercial units, a

          4  20-year exemption, a 43,400, total exempt amount of

          5  817,000.

          6                 The next one is Land Use 1074, the

          7  New Foundations Program. It's in Council Member

          8  Malave-Dilan and Council Member Wooten's district.

          9                 The summary sheet that you have

         10  before you is an error, it should state that this is

         11  both in Malave-Dilan and Wooten's district. The

         12  majority of the properties are in Council Member

         13  Wooten's district.

         14                 This is 22 three-family homes, a

         15  20-year exemption, a 59,000 total exempt amount of

         16  1,060,000.

         17                 The next one is Land Use 1075. This

         18  is also New Foundations Program, East New York Site

         19  2-A, in both Malave-Dilan and Council Member

         20  Wooten's District, a 20-year exemption, first-year

         21  exempt amount of 48,600, total exempt amount of

         22  867,000.

         23                 Next is Land Use 1076. It's a

         24  Partnership New Homes Program, it's a Hopkins Avenue

         25  site in Council Member Malave-Dilan and Council
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          2  Member Boyland's district. Forty-three two-family

          3  homes, 20-year exemption of 119,000. Total exempt

          4  amount of 2,127,000.

          5                 Next one is Land Use 1099. Also

          6  Partnership New Homes. This is a Central Avenue site

          7  in Council Member Robles' and Malave-Dilan's

          8  district. Seventy-two family homes, 20-year

          9  exemption, 142,000, first year exempt amount. Total

         10  exempt amount is 2,530,000.

         11                 Next one is Land Use 1102. It's a New

         12  Foundations Program in Council Member Wooten's

         13  district. It's 23 two-family homes. A 20-year

         14  exemption, 57,000 is the first year exempt amount,

         15  1,015,000 is the total exempt amount.

         16                 The last one is the third-party

         17  transfer program, the recently completed Manhattan

         18  round in Council Members Michels, Reed, Perkins,

         19  Linares and Moskowitz district. You will see that

         20  there are 30 buildings, 689 residential units and

         21  eight commercial units.

         22                 These are going to non-profits and

         23  therefore get a 40-year exemption of 517,000 and the

         24  total 40-year amount is 48,446,000. And there are

         25  also 13 buildings with 325 residential units and 11
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          2  commercial units. These will get a 20-year

          3  exemption, as they're ultimately being transferred

          4  to for profit entities, that would be 249,000 and a

          5  total exempt amount is 5,540,000.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Chairman

          7  Berman, just for the record now, and I want it noted

          8  for the record, as has been indicated, there are a

          9  few errors as it relates to the printing of this

         10  document, especially in areas of 1074 and 1075. And

         11  as I'm reading and remember in the discussion and

         12  what I approved, it's supposed to be in reverse; can

         13  I say that to you?

         14                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: In other

         16  words, 1074 is really 1075 and 1075 is really 1074,

         17  as it relates to my papers and the area that I

         18  represent, and I want the record to note that. And

         19  this is not disrespecting to Land Use, because they

         20  worked very closely with me, but errors that have

         21  been occurring in my perspective sign-off is

         22  unexcusable, and I, as a Councilwoman, should not

         23  have to be looking over my shoulder trying to see

         24  what is being done proper. It's just that because

         25  once I'm a part of a process, it locked in, and I
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          2  could take one look and tell you that it's

          3  inaccurate.

          4                 I intend to deal with that in another

          5  perspective, but I want you to know that I'm not one

          6  for, you know, picking little things out but it's

          7  happening too much, and there has to be a resolve to

          8  it. So, thank you for giving me an opportunity to

          9  explain that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ms.

         11  Wooten.

         12                 Mr. Rodriguez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair.

         15                 I have a few questions on the

         16  third-party transfer.

         17                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: On these

         19  for-profit properties that are getting the $5

         20  million in exemptions --

         21                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can you

         23  maybe, I'm specifically interested in number one

         24  property, which is 334 East 96th Street; how much of

         25  that is going to that property?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 Could you first of all explain to me

          3  what the exemptions are for?

          4                 MR. PECHEFSKY: The exemptions are

          5  part of the financial package which allows the

          6  properties to get the low-interest rehabilitation

          7  loans to rehabilitate the properties.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: These

          9  properties are get low-interest rehabilitation

         10  loans?

         11                 MR. PECHEFSKY: That's part of the

         12  third-party transfer program.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         14                 MR. PECHEFSKY: That's the nature of

         15  the program.

         16                 The exemptions are part of that,

         17  would allow them to access these loans. You know, as

         18  you know, the properties go into rent stabilization,

         19  so the exemption helps the finance of the building,

         20  helps the building to remain financially viable.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: This

         22  building is mostly empty, though. So, the rent

         23  stabilization wouldn't -- it wouldn't go into rent

         24  stabilization at that point, I guess, right?

         25                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Well, no --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: It will go

          3  to rent stabilization at the market rate of today's

          4  market, which is --

          5                 MR. PECHEFSKY: That's true.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Which is

          7  for this building, how much is that per unit

          8  probably, $5,000 an apartment?

          9                 So, do we know how much --

         10                 MR. PECHEFSKY: We do it as a package.

         11  It is submitted to us as a package, but we don't

         12  break out the individual properties. I probably

         13  could give that to you. I could give it to you but I

         14  don't have it right now because the exemption is

         15  done for all the properties based on the current

         16  assessed value, and then growing for increase in the

         17  assessed value once the properties are

         18  rehabilitated.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I have

         20  specific problems with this program because I think

         21  that we're taking valuable New York City assets.

         22                 And, Mr. Chairman, as we sat there

         23  going through the budget negotiations this week, and

         24  we saw how much we were trimming the small programs

         25  of 100,000, 200,000, you know, this building,
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          2  according to Council Member Moskowitz, is what's

          3  between 30 million and 40 million as is, and we're

          4  giving it to somebody for free. And then in addition

          5  to that, you're coming here before us and saying

          6  they need tax abatements and they're going to get

          7  low-interest rate loans for a building on the east

          8  side of Manhattan and 96th Street, where the rents

          9  are going to be 5,000, 6,000, 7,000 or 8,000 dollars

         10  a month, I think that we have to look at this and

         11  think --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Why don't we have

         13  Jim, the Commissioner --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Well, I'm

         15  asking the question, whoever wants to answer the

         16  question, it's fine.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         18  James Gardella, Assistant Commissioner, Department

         19  of Housing Preservation and Development.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good morning.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And I had

         22  the same questions when they were in my district, by

         23  the way.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         25  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 I always like to step back a little

          3  and remind people why we are at this point with

          4  these buildings. This was an effort signed into law

          5  jointly by the Administration and the City Council

          6  in 1996 to take properties away from landlords who

          7  had failed in their obligations to be landlords and

          8  had failed in their obligations to the tenants and

          9  failed in their obligations to pay taxes and charges

         10  to the City of New York.

         11                 The program is new. It is recent. It

         12  has won awards from the Kennedy School of Government

         13  and other nationwide awards, and all of the

         14  buildings on this agenda for today for tax

         15  exemptions were previously the subject of a lengthy

         16  public hearing at Chairman Spigner's Committee of

         17  Housing and Buildings.

         18                 At that Committee, Assistant

         19  Commissioner Glenn, who is in charge of this

         20  program, testified that no monies would be offered

         21  or put into this building by the City of New York.

         22  This is a blanket possibility for struggling

         23  buildings that need it, it does not mean that this

         24  building is going to get any low interest loans.

         25                 In fact, she testified at Chairman
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          2  Spigner's Committee that there is going to be no

          3  City funds put into this building.

          4                 Nevertheless, in order to make the

          5  package of buildings eligible for possible future

          6  actions and for the UDAAP findings, which allow for

          7  transfer of clean title from one owner to the other,

          8  we bring it, after the Council has okayed the

          9  transfer of these buildings, as has failed to alter

         10  our selections, we bring it to Land Use and to this

         11  Committee for UDAAP findings and tax exemptions.

         12                 But this has been addressed, and I

         13  think it was addressed, frankly, at some length at

         14  the Housing and Buildings Committee relative to this

         15  building.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I've had

         17  this issue when it was in my district --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We have a

         19  situation with the Committee's approval, there were

         20  three people who were engaged in another action, so

         21  if I can cause them to vote; is that okay? Would you

         22  defer your questions?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Would you call

         25  Ms. Eisland's, Mr. Foster and Mr. Robles' vote.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Eisland.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Robles.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Sign the reports.

          9                 Okay, Angel.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I just

         11  think that, I hear what he said, but I think we

         12  should put something, make it clear that this

         13  particular building and other buildings like this

         14  that are worth millions and millions of dollars are

         15  not on a list of which we have to approve millions

         16  and millions of dollars of tax cuts. I mean, there's

         17  $50 million in tax abatements down the road, and I'm

         18  looking at this and I'm saying something is wrong

         19  with the way the system is set up. Maybe at the end

         20  of the day that won't happen.

         21                 I'm really uncomfortable with the

         22  fact that we're giving away a building of this type,

         23  maybe yes, maybe three, four or five years ago there

         24  is something that was put in place to try to allow

         25  for this system to happen. However, buildings like
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          2  this should be used.

          3                 I mean, I was talking to Council

          4  Member Moskowitz, and she was talking about there

          5  being need for senior housing in their district and

          6  there being no ability to find senior housing, and

          7  we're giving away 33 units to a private developer to

          8  do whatever he wants to and to get very wealthy off

          9  of a building like this. Well, he can't get much

         10  wealthier than he is, but I guess to get wealthier,

         11  and I just have a real big problem with the City

         12  just getting rid of its assets in this way and not

         13  sitting by, and just continually saying yes, yes,

         14  yes, it's okay.

         15                 When it was in my district I

         16  complained, I complained very, very vigorously and I

         17  made clear, I made my voice reknown, and I just want

         18  to know that when I looked at this and I read about

         19  this in the New York Times about two months ago and

         20  I saw the issue that was coming up here, I realized

         21  that at some point we have to revisit it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Council

         23  Member Moskowitz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 I appreciate Council Member

          3  Rodriguez' statement. I realize this is sort of late

          4  in the game, but HPD has not really made clear why a

          5  private developer is getting an asset worth a lot of

          6  money, and on top of it, if I understand correctly

          7  these figures, getting exemptions to rehabilitate.

          8                 Is there exemptions, and can you just

          9  specify. Am I understanding that in the first year

         10  it's 249,000, and in the second year it's 5 million?

         11                 MR. PECHEFSKY: No, that's not

         12  correct. The first year exemption is 249,000, is for

         13  all 13 buildings that are being transferred to

         14  for-profit entities. The 5 million is the total

         15  exempt amount for over a 20-year period, that's a

         16  projected exempt amount. That's what those numbers

         17  represent.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I would

         19  just add to what Council Member Rodriguez just said.

         20  I mean, I have tried to shepherd through a tax

         21  abatement policy for the City to encourage

         22  developers to lease buildings to schools, and it's

         23  been rather difficult to get that through, and here

         24  we are giving Mr. Spitzer, and I have nothing

         25  against him, I believe that the real estate is an
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          2  important economic engine and we should encourage

          3  it, but I really fail to understand why these

          4  exemptions are necessary.

          5                 They are already getting the asset.

          6                 This is not a poor neighborhood. This

          7  is a prime location. 96th Street is my district, I

          8  know, this is not -- this building on the private

          9  market is worth a lot of money and I'm just

         10  disappointed in this process.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Council Member

         13  Wooten.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I can

         15  sympathize with my two colleagues and their

         16  thoughts. However, the programs that you read that

         17  impact on my district, and I think I can speak for

         18  Council Member Boyland and Robinson, we are not

         19  privy to have that type of prime property in your

         20  areas that you represent. However, we have to depend

         21  on people wanting to come into our districts to

         22  develop.

         23                 The blight that once existed in our

         24  communities, when people didn't want to have

         25  anything to do with us, neither building, or living,
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          2  there were people, and I can speak of those

          3  developers that I know who had never asked the City

          4  of New York for anything. They went ahead, they

          5  found property, they bought it, they build, they

          6  sold houses to poor people, not people who had a lot

          7  of money, not people who were interested in leaving

          8  East New York, but who had been there all their

          9  lives and found an opportunity to invest in housing,

         10  and this is exactly what they did.

         11                 I could tell you right now that there

         12  is over 3,000 applications in for these types of

         13  buildings in my district, poor people who are paying

         14  at least $500 to $800 a month rent, the

         15  encouragement that we have instilled in our

         16  community, if you are paying over $500 a month for

         17  rent, you can invest in a home collectively with a

         18  relative, and this is exactly what we are doing,

         19  especially among the young people.

         20                 But if we didn't have programs to

         21  attract, you know, you are talking about some of the

         22  abatements and I have to address my perspective, and

         23  in addressing my perspective I have to be defensive

         24  of the need for abatement in my area.

         25                 You know, Council Member Moskowitz,
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          2  if you feel you don't want it, you can give it to

          3  me, I'll take it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I think

          5  that we need to use public money than to have Mr.

          6  Spitzer --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I'll take it

          8  in East New York and Brownsville.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I think

         10  we're in total agreement. I think that would be

         11  better.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: But I just

         13  want to defend that, wherein it might not be good

         14  for those areas as you've mentioned, it's very good

         15  for areas that I represent because the blight, that

         16  attractiveness and all the other things that go

         17  along with it is not there as you prescribed in your

         18  area. So, we really have to have people want to do

         19  business with us, and in order to make them want to

         20  do, in order to make people want to be a part of a

         21  process in my area, we have to make it attractive,

         22  and right now I could tell you that because of these

         23  kind of projects, that the value of property is

         24  tripling where one time the blight was so dense

         25  until we just -- I think I could still quote my
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          2  colleague's husband who said that East New York was

          3  at the end of the world, but now I'm here to sit

          4  before all of you and say 19 years later, we are

          5  beginning to see the light at the end of the tunnel

          6  and we are at the beginning of the world, we are not

          7  at the end of the world, we are at the beginning of

          8  the world in East New York.

          9                 You have homes that are now, that

         10  nobody wanted to deal with are now going, and I can

         11  say that because next door to me is Herb Berman, and

         12  some of those homes are going for $375,000 a home,

         13  and not one of them have not been spoken for. Every

         14  one of them are in hot demand.

         15                 If you cross the street over in mine

         16  it might be 200 or 275, they are gone already. So,

         17  we are on the move back to where it was before

         18  because of a Starret City and because of the

         19  shopping malls and because of the new things that

         20  are going on, East New York and Brownsville is on

         21  its way back.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can I ask a

         24  question on these?

         25                 On all of these, I guess there are --
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          2  I don't know how many there are. I know you crossed

          3  a lot of them off so I assume they're not -- are all

          4  of these going to be HDFCs? Where are they

          5  ultimately going to go, these buildings; are they

          6  all going to be tenant-owned co-ops?

          7                 MR. PECHEFSKY: No. In fact, some will

          8  be, the ones that are going to the non-profit,

          9  not-for-profits, will be HDFCs, some of them may be

         10  tenant-owned co-ops, some of them will be rental

         11  buildings. The ones that are going to the

         12  for-profits will, in likelihood, remain rental.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But doesn't

         14  HDFC mean a co-op?

         15                 MR. PECHEFSKY: No. The co-ops are a

         16  subset of the HDFCs. The ones that we're familiar

         17  with, the TILs, which are HDFCs, are in fact

         18  cooperatives.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, how

         20  many of these are going to end up with private

         21  owners?

         22                 MR. PECHEFSKY: They're all going to

         23  private owners, some for-profit and some non-profit.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm talking

         25  about, let's say for-profit.
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          2                 MR. PECHEFSKY: The for-profit, there

          3  will be 13 buildings --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are any of

          5  these owned by tenant co-ops? Are any of these going

          6  to be tenant co-ops?

          7                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Some of the

          8  non-for-profits may be developed as tenant co-ops

          9  down the line.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There is no

         11  guarantee that this doesn't end up all rental

         12  property?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: If I

         14  may?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Many

         17  of the non-profits were brought, the qualified

         18  non-profit owners were brought into the picture by

         19  the tenants in the building with the notion of

         20  getting the buildings, of the non-profit experienced

         21  management groups getting the buildings stabilized,

         22  getting them repaired and eventually having tenant

         23  ownership situations.

         24                 I think you'll find that that will be

         25  the scenario for most of the non-profit ones.
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          2                 Council member, the reason you see

          3  HDFC written so prominently on them --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, every

          5  one of them has HDFC written there.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          7  That's because there's an interim step. These

          8  buildings are not in City ownership.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         10  that. This is third-party transfer situation.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         12  Right, there's an interim step --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This is

         14  avoiding the in rem sales.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         16  Right.

         17                 The interim step is Neighborhood

         18  Restore, which is a non-profit HDFC, takes over the

         19  buildings, makes a census of who the legal tenants

         20  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So that's

         22  just the name of the transferee.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         24  That's right. So, that's why you see it written --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What
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          2  percentage of these are going to end up in private

          3  ownership?

          4                 For instance, All State Realty, I'm

          5  looking at the first one, 34 East 96th Street.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          7  Well, they're all in private --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: In other

          9  words, you are saying that one is going to end up in

         10  private ownership --

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Mr.

         12  Pechefsky is correct, they're all in private

         13  ownership and the way both the Brooklyn, Bronx and

         14  Manhattan third-parties have run so far, half of the

         15  buildings have been disposed of to non-profit

         16  groups, and half of them have been disposed of

         17  privately. It's just about 50/50.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chair,

         19  let me just bring something out.

         20                 We understand, we understand the

         21  third-party transfer program came about as the

         22  result of trying to keep buildings from going in

         23  rem, and because we weren't doing anything with the

         24  in rems, we had a whole stack of in rems as an

         25  effort to, you know, try to previous hit before they
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          2  go into in rem.

          3                 Now, if you remember, years ago one

          4  of the big problems we had were buildings were going

          5  in rem, then they would go to an in rem sale, and

          6  they would be purchased without even an upset value.

          7  When we first came into the Council, there wouldn't

          8  even be an upset value, the landlords would buy

          9  them, then milk them for three years, not pay any

         10  real estate taxes and go back in rem and the cycle

         11  went on for three times until the buildings were

         12  destroyed.

         13                 Then we decided we better have -- and

         14  I passed the first resolution saying you cannot have

         15  these sales, at least without an upset value. So,

         16  the whole purpose of this thing is to keep this

         17  housing as affordable, decent housing.

         18                 So, here we have a situation where

         19  the City wasn't taking buildings in rem at all, they

         20  were just sitting there and were not being in rem

         21  and they were in limbo so-to-speak, they hadn't paid

         22  their taxes, the City wasn't taking them in rem,

         23  there was no foreclosure, so that we decided to do

         24  this program, the third-party transfer program,

         25  which is in answer to that.
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          2                 So, what we're doing now is now doing

          3  the sale and we're giving them abatement.

          4                 Now what is preventing this building

          5  to be taken over by these private owners, to be

          6  milked again, because they are not paying, not only

          7  are they not paying, they're getting a tax

          8  exemption, they are taking these buildings over,

          9  they're not paying any taxes on these buildings, and

         10  they are not even required to pay taxes for many

         11  years or a less of a tax, from milking the buildings

         12  and not putting the money into the buildings and

         13  fixing them up and then walking away from them?

         14                 So, the whole objective here is to

         15  get affordable housing --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, let

         17  him answer the question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, I just

         19  wanted to finish my question.

         20                 The whole objective here, being to

         21  get affordable housing, what's the protections here,

         22  number one, that when they take over the buildings,

         23  the buildings will be fixed up, and then when

         24  they're supposed to pay taxes, they will pay the

         25  taxes.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          3  First of all, the buildings are sold subject to

          4  existing tenancy, they are not by and large vacant

          5  buildings. There are some vacant buildings, there

          6  are many occupied buildings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm not

          8  asking them -- how do we know they are going to fix

          9  these buildings up, because these buildings are all

         10  buildings with problems?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         12  Because in the disposition, in the sales agreements

         13  there are conditions. First of all, to be on the

         14  list to receive these, to be these non-profit groups

         15  they went through a request for qualifications where

         16  they show the portfolios they had, and that they

         17  were good and sound managers of buildings.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, what if

         19  some guy sneaks in there, he may have great, good

         20  credentials --

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         22  They're not here without that.

         23                 Second of all, the land disposition

         24  agreement to the new owners will have requirements

         25  of upkeep and maintenance.
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          2                 And third of all --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, wait,

          4  second of all --

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: --

          6  Our agency -- could I finish, please, Councilman?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Stanley, let him

          8  answer.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         10  Third of all, our agency has created an Asset

         11  Management Unit which is going to track, which is

         12  going to track buildings that have gone through both

         13  this process and assets of the City that we sold,

         14  buildings that we've sold through City programs,

         15  they are in operation now. They track assets, they

         16  report back on a regular basis, and they will go

         17  after anyone who is not living up to the terms of

         18  the regulatory agreement by which we dispose to the

         19  buildings.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do these

         21  agreements require them to fix up the buildings?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Of

         23  course.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And these

         25  agreements --
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          3  Remove all code violations, repair the buildings,

          4  maintain the buildings.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The agreement

          6  makes sure the buildings are being fixed and

          7  corrected? And what is the penalty if they don't do

          8  it?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: The

         10  penalty is that we can go to court and attempt to

         11  gain the properties back.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And why do

         13  you have to go to court? Why don't you just have --

         14  is this a contract action?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: This

         16  is something that's beyond me, Councilman. This is a

         17  matter for our Housing Litigation Bureau. But we

         18  have one, they often take landlords to court, fines,

         19  fees, and other penalties.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Which

         21  sometimes they don't pay, and sometimes it takes

         22  years to get the buildings back, right? Meanwhile

         23  the building is deteriorated.

         24                 Isn't there a better method of

         25  getting the buildings back if they defaulted on
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          2  their obligations?

          3                 I'm glad you're having obligations

          4  and making them -- because I want to avoid what

          5  happened so many years ago, these properties were

          6  destroyed. But what type of legal obligation do they

          7  have and what's your penalty and remedy to go in and

          8  get these buildings back if the people who got these

          9  buildings are not fulfilling their obligations?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: I

         11  think I responded to that. I think perhaps we're

         12  beyond -- it sounds to me like your interested in an

         13  oversight hearing --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: No, no, I'm

         15  about to pass on some buildings we're turning over

         16  and giving very, very healthy tax exemptions, huge

         17  tax exemptions, we are giving them valuable

         18  property, and I want to know that when they take

         19  these buildings over, that they're obligation to fix

         20  these buildings up, and obligations for future

         21  payments of taxes are there. These buildings, these

         22  are not going to end up in tenants hands, these are

         23  going to end up in real estate people's hands who

         24  are in the business of making profits out of their

         25  buildings. I'm not talking about the
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          2  not-for-profits.

          3                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Council Member, let me

          4  say this, that it's in the language of the

          5  resolution that if they don't follow the terms of

          6  the regulatory agreement and the tax exemption is

          7  null and void, so should they not follow the terms

          8  of the regular agreement, including the

          9  rehabilitation of properties, they will not be

         10  eligible for the tax exemption.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Fine. Now,

         12  they're not exempt from the tax exemptions, they

         13  therefore have to pay taxes, right? And how long can

         14  we go after the building in a default tax exemption?

         15  And when we do that will we end up again in the

         16  third-party transfer situation?

         17                 MR. PECHEFSKY: I can't answer those

         18  questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, first of

         20  all, wouldn't it then go under the tax lien sale?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They are not

         22  doing any in rems.

         23                 MR. PECHEFSKY: It depends on the

         24  status of the building. It depends on whether the

         25  building, if it goes back, if it becomes distressed
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          2  again, then, no, it would be withheld from the tax

          3  lien sale.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          5                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Were it to become

          6  distressed --

          7                 (Council Member Reed is asking a

          8  question and not using the microphone.)

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Reed, can you

         10  first address your question here?

         11                 Okay, now can you answer Mr. Reed's

         12  question?

         13                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Yes, gladly.

         14                 The question is, if the property goes

         15  through another cycle of where there are violations,

         16  what in fact happens, and the Chair asked me, would

         17  it go into tax lien sale, and I answered no, in

         18  fact, were the property to meet the criteria of

         19  distress it wouldn't go into the tax lien sale. So

         20  we're looking down the road. It's a hypothetical

         21  situation. We're talking about these specific

         22  properties. That was the exchange.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You're welcome,

         25  sir.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What I'm

          3  trying to figure out, Mr. Chairman, is what remedies

          4  do we have if the obligations that enter into, after

          5  we're being very generous, we are giving valuable

          6  property, we are exempting them from tax increases,

          7  I want to know what remedies do we have --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels,

          9  chill out a minute. You've asked the question a few

         10  times, permit me to try and help you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Jim, would you do

         13  me a favor, try and get a specific answer as quickly

         14  as you can.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes,

         16  Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         18                 Mr. Rodriguez, you have a question?

         19                 I'd rather not just make speeches,

         20  I'd rather it just be a question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Well,

         22  actually, at this point we're getting ready to take

         23  a vote, and I think those of us that are here ready

         24  to vote on it need to hear what the other ones are

         25  thinking, what the other ones are seeing in the
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          2  program.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, I

          4  understand that, that's why I asked him if he had an

          5  answer to the question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: What year

          7  was this legislation originally passed?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

          9  1996.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: 1996. And

         11  since then, I guess in the last six months, is when

         12  these things have actually been passed by the

         13  Council in the last year?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: The

         15  first action was in the Bronx in 1999, and

         16  subsequently there was a Brooklyn, Bronx action

         17  earlier this year, and now there is Manhattan

         18  actions.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, so

         20  you know that I oppose the one in Brooklyn very,

         21  very much, and I oppose this one, and I just wanted

         22  to address what Councilwoman Wooten said.

         23                 You know, before us we have the Home

         24  Works Program, which is a great program, which goes

         25  out there and provides loans and provides subsidies
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          2  and gives tax abatements for programs in our

          3  communities I think that go through the process and

          4  mostly go through non-profit organizations. We have

          5  the New Foundations Program, we have the Partnership

          6  New Homes Program, which is a program that provides

          7  new homes for people in our communities. We have all

          8  these programs that allow for people, like Council

          9  Member Michels was saying, to get the homes and get

         10  the homes that they live in.

         11                 This is not what we have here. What

         12  we have here is a program that transfers assets, not

         13  from the City because we haven't taken title, but

         14  assets that the City can actually have and give them

         15  in certain cases, in this case I guess in 13

         16  instances, to private developers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Rodriguez, if

         18  I may, so that I understand. You object to the

         19  program, or you object to this specific item?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I object to

         21  the fact that these buildings are going to these

         22  private developers when, in fact, they should be

         23  going to the people of the City of New York to

         24  provide affordable housing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Then you object
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          2  to the program?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I object to

          4  the program in the instances --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, that's

          6  fine. I'm just trying to understand.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And I'm not

          8  saying I object to the program in all instances, I'm

          9  saying in these instances when we are looking at it,

         10  and I object to the program when it goes to private

         11  developers. When it goes, as Council Member Michels

         12  was saying, to HDFCs, or to groups in which they get

         13  to own the building, then it's a different story.

         14  Then those buildings wind up in the hands of --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So you object if

         16  it goes to an individual?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: An

         18  individual who is going to get extremely wealthy off

         19  the assets of the City of New York and does it in a

         20  way that's not responsible, and at the same time

         21  we're sitting in the room there cutting $100,000

         22  from a program, or $200,000 from a program, and this

         23  is $50 million or $60 million that we're giving

         24  away. That's the big problem I have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Fine. All right.
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          2  I wanted to condense the issue, and now I

          3  understand.

          4                 Jim, were you able to get a specific

          5  answer to that?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: We

          7  have had several lengthy hearings at a different

          8  committee, the Housing and Buildings Committee, at

          9  which questions about the program --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: This issue was

         11  also taken up in the Land Use Committee, was it not?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: It

         13  was taken up at Land Use also, but the programmatic

         14  and detailed questions I had Deputy Commissioner in

         15  charge of the program and the Assistant Commissioner

         16  in charge of the program, when these were discussed

         17  at great length as a program before the Council, and

         18  in the case of this particular group of buildings,

         19  that was in early April of this year.

         20                 Obviously, there are members that

         21  feel strongly in certain ways about the program, but

         22  I did not believe that today we were going to get

         23  into the origin, quite frankly, of the program, nor

         24  people's views about whether this sort of

         25  ground-breaking method of dealing with troubled
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          2  buildings, dealing with landlords who had failed in

          3  their obligations, was sound or not.

          4                 The Council had acted by adopting the

          5  legislation previously to say this was an approach

          6  that the Council wished to pursue, and we at HPD

          7  have been pursuing it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Point of

         10  information?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: In a moment, Mr.

         12  Michels.

         13                 You had this detailed hearing at

         14  Housing and Buildings; is that correct?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: Yes,

         16  Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You had it,

         18  subsequently this specific issue came before --

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: The

         20  Land Use Committee.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The Land Use

         22  Committee, okay.

         23                 Mr. Michels, what is your point of

         24  information?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, that is
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          2  true. However, this is the first time we considered

          3  the tax exemptions. We did not discuss tax

          4  exemptions with the Landmarks Committee, nor for the

          5  Housing and Buildings. It was disingenuous to say

          6  we've had an issue before, because that's the main

          7  issue we're discussing right now.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Excuse me, Mr.

          9  Michels. First of all, I resent you telling me that

         10  I'm disingenuous.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I didn't say

         12  you were disingenuous.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, you're

         14  pointing your finger and yelling at me.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHES: We had not had

         16  this issue before us --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I am attempting,

         18  sir, to try and understand this.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         20  that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels,

         22  before it can get to this Committee, it has to be

         23  debated in the Land Use Committee.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right. I'm a

         25  member of the Housing and Buildings Committee.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I'm talking about

          3  Land Use Committee.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm not a

          5  member of the Land Use.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I know that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The issue of

          8  tax exemption was not before the Land Use Committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, I'm

         10  not debating or fighting this issue with you. I am

         11  attempting to try and understand the process that is

         12  currently being questioned.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm not

         14  saying you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: But you looked

         16  like you were.

         17                 Now, my understanding is that this --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Just because

         19  you're paranoid doesn't always mean I'm following

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: -- That this

         22  issue was first debated and voted on last week I

         23  believe in the Land Use Committee; am I correct?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         25                 But not on the issue of the tax
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          2  exemption.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Of course it was.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Not on the

          5  issue of the tax exemption.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Of course it was.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This is the

          8  first time we're finding out about the tax

          9  exemption. That's why they're in this Committee.

         10                 MR. PECHEFSKY: In fact, the

         11  resolution that authorizes the UDAAP finding also

         12  includes the tax exemption, as is always the case

         13  with UDAAP findings. The tax exemption is part of

         14  the project, it is what makes the project work.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The issue

         16  right now is tax exemption, that's why it's here in

         17  this Committee.

         18                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: If it wasn't

         20  a tax exemption, it wouldn't be in this Committee.

         21                 MR. PECHEFSKY: That's true, but the

         22  tax exemption is part of the project considered in

         23  Land Use.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: May I make a

         25  suggestion?
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          2                 We had very little notice of this

          3  coming up before this Committee, it was not on the

          4  schedule, we did not -- and if time isn't of the

          5  essence, I would suggest that this be put over.

          6                 So we can look at more detail to this

          7  and some of the members can see more about what's

          8  going on, how it's affected.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: What are the time

         10  constraints?

         11                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Well, I would say

         12  that, given that this has already been approved

         13  through Land Use --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No, no. I'm not

         15  asking you to exercise your own individual judgment.

         16                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I'm asking you

         18  only to tell me what the time constraints are.

         19                 Take a two-minute recess, find out

         20  what the time constraint is.

         21                 And, Jim, would you do me a favor,

         22  find out as to whether or not there is any other

         23  means of enforcement, in case there is anything

         24  violative of the term --

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:
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          2  Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, that's

          4  what I'd like to see also, the method of

          5  enforcement.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Angel,

          7  we're in a recess.

          8                 (Recess taken.)

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, ladies

         10  and gentlemen, may I have your attention?

         11                 Will someone get Claude, please?

         12                 MR. CARAS: Claude is here.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, is

         14  there any other member of the Finance Committee that

         15  is not here?

         16                 All right, Mr. Michels, you had a

         17  question?

         18                 We are going to end this one way or

         19  another, folks, so please.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 The first thing I'd like to ask is

         23  that --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You have a

         25  question of HPD, Mr. Michels?
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          2                 Angel, let him ask his question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. The

          4  first thing I'd like to have is requesting of the

          5  Chair the change in procedure that when we have

          6  these tax exemption proceedings, that we have them

          7  listed individually by building, even though we may

          8  vote in lump sum, it would nice to know what each

          9  bill --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I think that's an

         11  interesting proposal, Mr. Michels, and I think we

         12  ought to present it to the Speaker as a proposal.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, but I

         14  hope with your recommendation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I would be

         16  delighted to make such a recommendation.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 Okay, the questions I have for Mr.

         20  Gardella, and --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Let's just try to

         22  do it in an abbreviated sense.

         23                 I'd like to do this before July 1st.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Commissioner

         25  Glen, no relation to Christine Booth Glen?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: I am.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You are?

          4  What's your relation?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We'll discuss

          7  that later. We'll discuss that later.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, no

          9  more levity, okay? Cut the levity, direct to the

         10  question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, my

         12  question is this: As I understand the procedure,

         13  these buildings, the title has already passed to the

         14  -- what corporation is now in charge of and has the

         15  title; where is the title right now?

         16                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: All of the

         17  buildings in round two have third-party transfer,

         18  other than a few there is a stay because of

         19  litigation, have been transferred to the

         20  Neighborhood Restore Housing Development Fund

         21  Corporation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And as I

         23  understand, that's a quasi governmental agency?

         24                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: It's an article 11

         25  Housing Development Fund Corporation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And who is on

          3  the board? Who controls that corporation?

          4                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: The Board is

          5  comprised of a variety of folks, the Enterprise

          6  Foundation, LISK, several other community groups,

          7  Fannie Mae.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, I'm not

          9  completely wrong in saying it's quasi governmental?

         10                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: I wouldn't

         11  characterize it as such.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How would you

         13  characterize it?

         14                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: A non-for-profit

         15  corporation with the Housing Development --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And that is

         17  the system which we have developed that the title is

         18  passed to that corporation on all of these

         19  third-party transfers?

         20                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: That's correct.

         21  But the Commissioner of the Department of Finance

         22  conveyed the deeds to these properties to that

         23  entity.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And they hold

         25  these transfers for a certain length of time, the
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          2  title for a certain length of time?

          3                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: That's correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And when is

          5  the title transferred over, under what conditions?

          6                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: The title is then

          7  conveyed to the "third-party" tranferees, after a

          8  period of time in which the construction financing

          9  has been finalized, so that right now while the

         10  properties are in Neighborhood Restore, the interim

         11  managers are assessing the buildings, doing scopes

         12  of work and beginning to enter into leases.

         13                 Many of these buildings, as you know,

         14  were severely dilapidated and abandoned, so part of

         15  the job of Neighborhood Restore and the Interim

         16  Manager is to go in and kind of get acquainted with

         17  the building, both its physical needs and the

         18  population.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is it fair to

         20  say, is it fair to say that only after all of the

         21  work has been done in the building, the obligated

         22  work -- there are certain obligations which are made

         23  upon the person who is ultimately going to receive

         24  the title of these properties? Certain obligation to

         25  repair the building, certain obligations to do a
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          2  number of other things, which I'm not going to get

          3  into right now.

          4                 But among them --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is it fair to

          7  say that that is, they all have to be done and

          8  completed before you will transfer title?

          9                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Well, actually

         10  it's a little bit different than that. We will

         11  convey the title to the third-party transferee

         12  simultaneously with the construction loan closing,

         13  right?

         14                 We will not convey a building to one

         15  of the third-party transferees until the

         16  rehabilitation financing is in place.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How about

         18  when the actual building has been repaired?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: No, the actual

         20  third-party transferee has to own the building while

         21  the construction is going on because they're the

         22  borrower. They're the borrower of the loan. So, when

         23  Neighborhood Restore conveys it to X, X has a

         24  construction loan and is responsible for doing the

         25  construction on that building.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now, in the

          3  event that they don't do the obligated repairs at

          4  that particular time, what can you do?

          5                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Do you mean the

          6  repairs or the construction --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. You've

          8  given the loan, you've transferred title, and

          9  they're not doing the repairs they're supposed to be

         10  doing.

         11                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: As in any

         12  construction loan, if you fail to do the work in a

         13  timely manner we can foreclose.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I can't hear.

         15  I wish there could be some quiet here.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: The lender

         17  obviously monitors the construction and makes sure

         18  that the scope of work is being done properly. And

         19  if the owner/developer fails to construct the

         20  building properly, the lender, which 99 percent of

         21  the time is HPD in conjunction with a participating

         22  lender, can foreclose, and all of the remedies that

         23  any other lender has.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That's part

         25  of the issue of the lending agreement, is it not?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Absolutely. Under

          3  our building loan agreement, our mortgages and our

          4  notes are, you know, standard loan documents where

          5  the City retains all the rights of any lender when

          6  we make a loan under the Private Housing Finance

          7  Law.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And part of

          9  the obligation, and that's a continuing prepaying

         10  back of the loan in the period of time that the

         11  ultimate owner --

         12                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Well, I mean, most

         13  of our loans tend to be 30-year loans.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There's a

         15  question in there somewhere, just let me ask it.

         16                 I know lawyers make lousy witnesses.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, try

         18  to make the question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The question

         20  is this: Under the obligation to repay the loan, is

         21  there an agreement not to waste the asset of the

         22  loan?

         23                 The security is the building, right?

         24                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: When you make
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          2  that loan, the security is the building which the

          3  ultimate owner --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: If I may, are you

          5  asking as to where or not in the event the borrower

          6  depreciates in any way the value of the mortgage

          7  property that the holder of the mortgage can now

          8  take back the property?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: No, that's

         10  not my question. That's not my question.

         11                 My question is, my question is,

         12  you've made a loan, and if you determine by your

         13  monitoring, and I assume that you're going to

         14  continue to monitor after title is passed, the asset

         15  of the loan, the security of the loan, mainly the

         16  building, is being wasted, allowed to deteriorate,

         17  as Mr. Berman said; what can you do? Can you call

         18  the loan at that time?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Well, I'm not

         20  exactly sure what the question is, but I'm happy to

         21  provide you with our standard mortgage --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I don't want

         23  documents. I want to hear from you.

         24                 You have made a loan.

         25                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The security

          3  for that loan is the building itself.

          4                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Is the real

          5  property, that's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now under

          7  that loan, there is an obligation to keep the

          8  property in good repair.

          9                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Of course, and

         10  insured and --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Let me

         12  understand.

         13                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now, if the

         15  owner does not keep that property in good repair,

         16  what are your rights then?

         17                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: My rights as a

         18  lender, or my rights as a --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The rights of

         20  Neighborhood Restore.

         21                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Well, Neighborhood

         22  Restore doesn't own the property at that point.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand

         24  they don't have the property. Who is making the

         25  loan?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: HPD.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay. So,

          4  what are the rights of HPD with respect to the title

          5  holder in the event that the owner is the one who

          6  has the title, who is obligated, is not keeping his

          7  property in good repair?

          8                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Well, the lender

          9  always has the rights that lenders have pursuant to

         10  law and the documents, and then HPD always has the

         11  right --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Please, don't

         13  say always has. I just want to know in this specific

         14  situation, in this specific type of thing, what is

         15  the owner's right --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Does HPD have

         17  that right?

         18                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: We most certainly

         19  have the right to -- there's a standard waste

         20  provision in our mortgage documents. I guess I'm

         21  sorry I'm not answering the question because I don't

         22  exactly understand it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What I'm

         24  talking about is, not only are they not paying back

         25  the loan, but they are wasting the assets.
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          2                 What do you do then?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels,

          4  permit her to answer.

          5                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: We would

          6  foreclose.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You would

          8  foreclose on the loan.

          9                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: We would make a

         10  determination with our asset management team as to

         11  whether or not we would commence a foreclosure

         12  proceeding.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, during

         14  this period of time, you not only require them to

         15  pay back the loan, but you also monitor the building

         16  to make sure the repairs are being done, and you

         17  also make sure that the building is being properly

         18  maintained.

         19                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay.

         21                 And in the event they don't do that,

         22  you call back the loan?

         23                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: We certainly have

         24  the rights to begin a foreclosure proceeding or any

         25  of the other --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, they

          3  have answered that they have the right. You asked

          4  that will they call back, her answer was they have

          5  the right to.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And will you

          7  do it?

          8                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: I can't answer

          9  that kind of a hypothetical, every building is

         10  different, obviously.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Have you done

         12  it in the past?

         13                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: HPD has commenced

         14  foreclosure, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right. May we

         16  now proceed?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the last

         18  question, the last question I have is, and as a

         19  matter of law, which you know, Jim -- Jim can answer

         20  that question, or you're the lawyer, you can answer

         21  it.

         22                 When the payment of taxes, when

         23  they're obligated to pay their taxes, when do you

         24  proceed for a tax lien sale?

         25                 COMMISSIONER GLEN: Again, this is the
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          2  Department of Finance's jurisdiction, but I am

          3  apprised by them that after four quarters of arrears

          4  they will place a property on a tax lien.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Four quarters

          6  would be one year.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Four quarters

          8  constitutes a one-year allowance.

          9                 COMMISSIONER GLENN: Four quarters.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         13                 All right, I'd like to now call the

         14  vote, please.

         15                 Is there anybody else who has any

         16  questions?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Just one last

         18  thing.

         19                 Do you continue the monitoring of

         20  these buildings during that period of time?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It's a good

         23  question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Excuse me, Ms.

         25  Pinkett, do you have a question?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I have a

          3  comment I want to make.

          4                 First of all, I'd like to thank you

          5  for the information we've received, it's been very

          6  helpful.

          7                 I'd like to make the following

          8  suggestion, though. The information that we received

          9  at the time we received it, we may seem not to be as

         10  receptive or as responsive as you would like us to

         11  be, but perhaps that was because we received it

         12  rather late in the process. There would possibly be

         13  a suggestion that I would recommend is that when you

         14  have property in our various districts, that we

         15  could receive some of the information you gave in

         16  terms of tax abatements and questions of that sort,

         17  would come to the -- excuse me. The Land Use items

         18  also comes to the Finance Committee, so it's

         19  appropriate also that if we ask in the Finance

         20  Committee for the questions that I'm asking.

         21                 So that if we could get that

         22  information, with the information as it's referred

         23  to the Committees, it would be helpful to us, so

         24  that we would know how to regard these queries as

         25  they came to us.
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          2                 And the second thing I would think

          3  would be in terms of the questions we ask, it would

          4  be not simply to say that you have the right to, but

          5  I think there's a question of responsibility. Most,

          6  many of us can look in our districts and see

          7  properties that have been taken over by someone for

          8  City properties, but have been left in various

          9  states of disrepair, and monies have been spent and

         10  they have not gone back on the City tax roll. That

         11  meant we've spent money and we haven't gotten the

         12  value for that money. So, I would think that we

         13  would ask that if you give us a report as to how

         14  productive much of what we propose to do or you

         15  bring to us and that we vote for is in our various

         16  communities or in this City, how much money we

         17  expend that is not necessarily beneficial, no matter

         18  -- we can't say it's Finance, we can't say it's

         19  HPD, but it's City dollars and we ought to be able

         20  to account for it.

         21                 Would you find that to be something

         22  that could be done?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA: For

         24  the first part of the question, Councilwoman

         25  Pinkett, we will provide you with, frankly, the
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          2  information for the third-party transfer were

          3  provided to Council people earlier in the process

          4  but we can certainly send it out a second time when

          5  we come here to finance. We'd be glad to do that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you. That

          7  would be helpful.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay, thank

          9  you so very much for the information.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GARDELLA:

         11  You're welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, any

         13  other questions?

         14                 There being none other, may we now

         15  have a roll call, please? Four of the members have

         16  already voted, please continue from there.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Berman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Pinkett.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Despite all

         21  of my questions and protest, I'm going to vote aye.

         22  And I'm going to vote aye, and with a recommendation

         23  that there be a severance of the packaging, because

         24  it lends itself to confusion when you give us a

         25  package to vote. And I vote aye with the
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          2  understanding that you're going to help us to make

          3  this process work more efficiently without

          4  controversy that's unnecessary.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Michels.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chairman,

          8  may I be temporarily excused to explain my vote?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm going to

         11  vote aye on this bill based upon the representations

         12  that have been made here to the effect that these

         13  are buildings that are going to be closely

         14  monitored, and I think they should be monitored even

         15  after the loans have been repaid, for the purpose of

         16  seeing to it that this program is a successful

         17  program.

         18                 Because if it's not, we will bring

         19  this to a sharp end, this program, pass legislation

         20  to that effect.

         21                 It seems to me that I would prefer

         22  that all of them became not-for-profit tenant-owned

         23  co-ops, but that not being the case, once we're

         24  giving money to private landlords and loans to

         25  private landlords, that these buildings, these
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          2  special obligations on the part of HPD to see that

          3  these buildings are not only -- the buildings are

          4  repaired properly, they're monitored to see that

          5  their ongoing maintenance is done well, and they

          6  become a successful building, and under those

          7  circumstances I vote aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Wooten.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koslowitz.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rodriguez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can I be

         14  excused a moment to include my vote?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Hopefully by the

         16  end of the day, yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 I think there are two separate issues

         20  here that we need to address:

         21                 Number one is, we're voting on the

         22  exemption here, and on the exemption I think that --

         23  it was explained to me before that even if we voted

         24  against this exemption they would probably be

         25  eligible for J-51, so they would get the exemption
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          2  anyway, so some people have a different version of

          3  that, but I think I accept that explanation.

          4                 But second and most importantly is

          5  the program itself, and the fact that this City is

          6  in the process of disposing of hundreds and hundreds

          7  and millions of dollars of assets and giving them

          8  away free for the developers, and I think that's

          9  something that we have to review and revisit again

         10  and try to figure out if there's a way for us to

         11  take property like this and build affordable

         12  housing, build senior housing, and housing for those

         13  people that are not market rate housing, like the

         14  ones that are happening in this program.

         15                 And I agree with Council Member

         16  Michels with regard to HDFCs, I think that would

         17  make the program better, but I think that if we're

         18  going to give away these huge amounts of properties,

         19  that they should be done to help the people of the

         20  City of New York, not just a few selected

         21  individuals.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: How do you vote?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I vote aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 Please continue the roll call.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: May I be

          5  temporarily excused to explain my vote, briefly?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You certainly

          7  may, as long as it's briefly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I just

          9  wanted to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for allowing this

         10  further discussion, it was very helpful.

         11                 There were some points that I felt

         12  needed clarification. I also want to thank my

         13  colleagues for raising some very important issues.

         14                 And I just want to say for the record

         15  that I would like to continue monitoring the outcome

         16  of this transfer to make sure that we have something

         17  which is in the public interest.

         18                 So, with that I vote aye and thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 14 in the

         22  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions,

         23  the items are adopted.

         24                 Please sign the reports.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Please sign the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  report.

          3                 We're in recess.

          4                 (Hearing recessed at 1:55 p.m.)

          5
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 5th day of June 2001.
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         24

                                   ---------------------
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